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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Decem ber 2018 (cont’d)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
2.4

Use of Estimates or Judgments (cont’d)
(c)

Allowance for Inventories
Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving
inventories. These reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these
estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of inventories.

(d)

Measurement of Income Taxes
Significant judgement is required in determining the Group’s provision for current tax
because the ultimate tax liability for the Group is uncertain. When the final outcome of the
tax payable is determined with the tax authority, the amount might be different from the
initial estimates of the tax payable. Such differences may impact the current tax in the
period when such determination is made. The Group will adjust for the differences as over
or under provision of current tax in the period in which the differences arise.

(e)

Impairment of Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist.
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill is allocated.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities.
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental
transaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are
recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.

3.2

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Financial Statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The Financial Statements of the subsidiaries used in the
preparation of the consolidated Financial Statements are prepared for the same reporting date as
the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied to like transactions and events in similar
circumstances.
All intra-group balances, income and expense and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intragroup transactions are eliminated in full.
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value
at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
In business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling interest in the
acquiree (if any) is recognised on the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree net identifiable assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.2

Basis of Consolidation (cont’d)
Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination,
the amount of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill in the statement of financial position. In
instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as a gain on
bargain purchase in profit or loss on the acquisition date.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Transactions with non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
owners of the Company, and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the Company.
Changes in the Company ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the parent.

3.3

Goodwill on Consolidation
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired, by comparing the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, with the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cashgenerating unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the
operations disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

3.4

Subsidiary Companies
Subsidiaries are entities including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The Financial
Statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated Financial Statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Control exists when the Group is exposed or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting
rights are considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive.
The Group considers it has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of
voting rights, it has the current ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the
investee’s return.
Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost
less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.5

Property, Plant and Equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment on a straight line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets concerned. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Long term leasehold land
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Electrical installation
Renovation and signboard
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Production equipment
Tools and equipment

%
over the lease period ranging from 50 to 93 years
2
10 – 20
10
10 – 20
20
10 – 20
10
10 - 15

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to
ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates
and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of
property, plant and equipment.
3.6

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after due allowances are made
for slow moving and obsolete inventories. Cost is principally determined on first-in, first-out basis.
The cost of raw materials comprises cost of purchase. The costs of finished goods and work-inprogress comprise direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of factory overheads
based on normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

3.7

Revenue Recognition
Revenue of the Group are recognised as follows:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is
passed to customer, which is the point in time when significant risks and rewards are
transferred to the customer and the transaction has met the probability of inflows and
measurement reliability requirements of MFRS 15.
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the services are performed.
Revenue from management services is recognised when the services are rendered.
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.8

Income Taxes
(a)

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

(b)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except where the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except where the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business
combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.9

Impairment
(a)

Financial assets
During the financial year, the Group adopted MFRS 9, Financial Instruments which replaces
MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Unless specifically disclosed below, the Group generally applied the following accounting
policies retrospectively. Nevertheless, as permitted by MFRS 9, the Group has elected not to
restate the comparative information.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.9

Impairment (cont’d)
(a)

Financial assets (cont’d)
Current financial year
The Group applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model of MFRS 9 to recognise impairment
losses of financial assets measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Except for trade receivables, a 12 month ECL is recognised in profit
or loss on the date of origination or purchase of the financial assets. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of a financial asset since its initial recognition or at the end of the prior period. Other than
for financial assets which are considered to be of low risk grade, a lifetime ECL is recognised
if there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. For trade
receivables, the Group has availed the exception to the 12 month ECL requirement to
recognise only lifetime expected credit losses.
The assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly is based on quantitative
and qualitative information that include financial evaluation of the creditworthiness of the
debtors or issuers of the instruments, ageing of receivables, defaults and past due amounts,
past experiences with the debtors, current conditions and reasonable forecast of future
economic conditions. For operational simplifications : (a) a 12 month expected credit loss is
maintained for financial assets which investment grades that are considered as low credit
risk, irrespective of whether credit risk has increased significantly or not; and (b) credit risk is
considered to have increased significantly if payments are more than 30 days past due if no
other borrower specific information is available without undue cost or effort.
The expected credit loss (ECL) is measured using an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, discounted for the
time value of money and applying reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions, and
forecasts of future economic conditions. The ECL for a financial asset (when assessed
individually) or a group of financial assets (when assessed collectively) is measured at the
present value of the probability-weighted expected cash shortfalls over life of the financial
asset or group of financial assets. When a financial asset is determined as credit-impaired
(based on objective evidences of impairment), the lifetime ECL is determined individually. For
trade receivables, the lifetime ECL is determined at the end of each reporting period using a
provision matrix. For each significant receivable, individual lifetime ECL is assessed
separately. For significant receivables which are not impaired and for all other receivables,
they are grouped into risk classes by type of customers and business, and the ageing of the
receivables. Collective lifetime ECLs are determined using past loss rates, which are updated
for effects of current conditions and reasonable forecasts for future economic conditions. In
the event that the economic or industry outlook is expected to worsen, the past loss rates are
increased to reflect the worsening economic conditions.
Previous financial year
All financial assets (except for investments in subsidiaries) are assessed at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a
result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised.
An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in profit or loss and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.9

Impairment (cont’d)
(b)

Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets (except for deferred tax asset) are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(groups of units) on a pro rata basis.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting
period for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

3.10 Foreign Currencies Conversion
3.10.1 Functional and presentation currency
The individual Financial Statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia
(“RM”), which is also the Group’s functional currency.
3.10.2 Foreign currency translations
In preparing the Financial Statements of the individual entities, transactions in foreign
currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies at the exchange rates
approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. At each financial year end, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the financial year end. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, or on translating
monetary items at the financial year end are recognised in profit or loss except for
exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the Group’s net
investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign
currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group on
disposal of the foreign operation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.10 Foreign Currency Conversion (cont’d)
3.10.2 Foreign currency translations (cont’d)
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for the differences arising on the
translation of non-monetary items in respect for the differences arising on the translation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.
Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items are also recognised directly in
equity.
3.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, fixed deposits and short term
investment with financial institutions that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in values.
3.12 Leased Assets
Finance lease
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount
equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Contingent lease payments are recognised as expenses in the profit or loss in the periods in
which they are incurred.
Leasehold land which is in substance is a finance lease is classified as property, plant and
equipment.
3.13 Segment Information
Segment reporting is presented for enhanced assessment of the Group’s risks and returns.
Business segments provide products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments. Geographical segments provide products or
services within a particular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those components operating in other economic environments.
Segment revenue, expense, assets and liabilities are those amounts resulting from the operating
activities of a segment that are directly attributable to the segment and the relevant portion that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to the segment. Segment revenue, expense, assets and
liabilities are determined before intragroup balances and intragroup transactions are eliminated as
part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that such intragroup balances and
transactions are between Group enterprises within a single element.
3.14 Provision
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.15 Employee Benefit Costs
Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses, social security contributions, paid annual leave and paid sick leave are
recognised as an expense in the financial year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group.
Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leaves are recognised when
services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated
absences. Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leaves are recognised
when the absences occur.
Defined contribution plan
The Group make contributions to the Employee Provident Fund in Malaysia, a defined contribution
pension scheme. Contributions to the defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related service is performed.
3.16 Contingencies
A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or benefit that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future
event(s) not wholly within the control of the Group and the Company.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the
Group and of the Company.
3.17 Financial Instruments
Unless specifically disclosed below, the Group generally applied the following accounting policies
retrospectively. Nevertheless, as permitted by MFRS 9, the Group has elected not to restate the
comparative information.
(a)

Initial Recognition and Measurement
The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial liability (including derivative
instruments) in the statement of financial position when, and only when, an entity in the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
If a contract is a host financial liability or a non-financial host contract that contains an
embedded derivative, the Group assesses whether the embedded derivative shall be
separated from the host contract on the basis of the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative and the host contract at the date when the Group becomes a party to
the contract. If the embedded derivative is not closely related to the host contract, it is
separated from the host contract and accounted for as a stand-alone derivative. The Group
does not make a subsequent reassessment of the contract unless there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the expected cash flows or when there is a
reclassification of a financial liability out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
Embedded derivatives in host financial assets are not separated.
Current financial year
On initial recognition, all financial assets (including intra-group loans and advances) and
financial liabilities (including intra-group payables) are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs if the financial asset or financial liability is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. For instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are
expensed to profit or loss when incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.17 Financial Instruments (cont’d)
(a)

Initial Recognition and Measurement (cont’d)
Previous financial year
Financial instruments was recognised initially, at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial instrument not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that were directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments.

(b)

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
For derecognition purposes, the Group first determines whether a financial asset or a
financial liability should be derecognised in its entirety as a single item or derecognised partby-part of a single item or of a group of similar items.
A financial asset, whether as a single item or as a part, is derecognised when, and only
when, the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when
the Group transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset,
including circumstances when the Group acts only as a collecting agent of the transferee,
and retains no significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset or no
continuing involvement in the control of the financial asset transferred.
A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is legally extinguished, which is
either when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. A
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

(c)

Regular-Way Purchases and Sales of Financial Assets
The Group recognises a regular-way purchase or sale of a quoted equity of debt instrument
at trade date, which is the date the purchase or sale transaction is entered into, rather than
recognising the forward contract between trade date and settlement date.

(d)

Financial Assets
Current financial year
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Group classifies financial assets into three
measurement categories, namely: (i) financial assets at amortised cost; (ii) financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income and (iii) financial assets at fair value through
profit of loss. The classification is based on the Group’s business model objective for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
instruments.
After initial recognition, the Group measures financial assets, as follows:
(i)

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost (AC) – A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if: (a) it is held within the Group’s business objective to hold the asset only to
collect contractual cash flows, and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
in principal outstanding.

(ii)

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – A
financial asset is measured at FVOIC if: (a) it is held within the Group’s business
objective to hold the asset both to collect contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest in
principal outstanding.

(iii)

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL) – A financial asset is
measured at FVPL if it is an equity investment, held for trading (including derivative
assets) or if it does not meet any of the condition specified for the AC or FVOCI model.
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3.17 Financial Instrument (cont’d)
(d)

Financial Assets (cont’d)
Current financial year (cont’d)
Other than financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, all other financial
assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with Note 3.9(a).
Previous financial year
In the previous financial year, financial assets of the Group were classified and measured
under MFRS 139, as follows:
(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value through profit or loss category comprised financial assets that were held for
trading, including derivatives (except for a derivative that was a financial guarantee
contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument) or financial assets that were
specifically designated into this category upon initial recognition.
Derivatives that were linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted equity
instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably measured were measured at cost.
Other financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss were
subsequently measured at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss.

(ii)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables category comprised debt instruments that were not quoted in
an active market. Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables were
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(e)

Financial Liabilities
Current financial year
After initial recognition, the Group measures all financial liabilities at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except for:
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(i)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including derivatives that are
liabilities) are measured at fair value.

(ii)

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies.

(iii)

Financial guarantee contracts issued, and commitments to provide loans at a belowmarket interest rate given by the Group, if any, are measured at the higher of : (a) the
amount of impairment loss determined and (b) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, the cumulative of income recognised in accordance with the
principles in MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.17 Financial Instrument (cont’d)
(e)

Financial Liabilities (cont’d)
Previous financial year
In the previous financial year, financial liabilities of the Group were subsequently measured
at amortised cost other than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss.
Fair value through profit or loss category comprised financial liabilities that were derivatives
or financial liabilities that were specifically designated into this category upon initial
recognition.
Derivatives that were linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted equity
instruments that did not have a quoted price in an active market for identical instruments
whose fair values otherwise could not be reliably measured were measured at cost.
Financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss were subsequently
measured at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

(f)

Fair Value Measurement
The fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is determined by reference to the
quoted market price in an active market, and in the absence of an observable market price,
by a valuation technique as described in Note 3.18.

(g)

Recognition of Gains and Losses
Fair value changes of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss when they arise.
For financial assets mandatorily measured at FVOCI, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest rate method), impairment losses, and exchange gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. All other gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and retained in a fair value reserve. On derecognition of the financial assets, the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, interest income and
interest expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. A gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss only when the financial asset or financial liability is
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process of the instrument.

3.18 Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. The measurement
assumes that the transaction takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market. For non-financial asset, the fair value
measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.
For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into level 1 to level 3 as
follows:
Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liability that
the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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3.19 Borrowing Costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest that the Group incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
3.20 Related Parties
A party is related to an entity (referred to as the “reporting entity”) if:
(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that
person:
(i)

has control or joint control over the reporting entity:

(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity of a parent of the
reporting entity.
(b)

An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a) above.
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with entity.

4.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company are that of investment holding and provision of management
services. The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 7 to the Financial
Statements.
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
GROUP
COST

Balance as
at 1.1.18
RM

Additions (Disposals)

(Written Balance as
off) at 31.12.18

RM

RM

RM

RM

Long term leasehold land

2,782,508

-

-

-

2,782,508

Buildings

5,613,823

-

-

-

5,613,823

Plant and machinery

10,367,018

497,455

-

9,883,697

Electrical installation

112,519

-

-

-

112,519

Renovation and signboard

412,225

80,650

-

-

492,875
2,555,729

Motor vehicles

-

-

-

Office equipment

419,519

22,516

-

(21,711)

420,324

Production equipment

146,122

-

-

-

146,122

Tools and equipment

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION/
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2,555,729

(980,776)

331,300

40,135

22,740,763

640,756

Balance as Charge for
the year (Disposals)
at 1.1.18
RM

RM

548,855

42,304

Buildings

1,837,833

106,126

Plant and machinery

9,431,173

301,325

Long term leasehold land

Electrical installation
Renovation and signboard
Motor vehicles

(980,776)

(2,264)

369,171

(23,975)

22,376,768

(Written Balance as
off) at 31.12.18

RM

RM

-

-

591,159

-

-

1,943,959

-

8,751,722

(980,776)

RM

68,567

5,370

-

-

73,937

412,214

13,442

-

-

425,656
1,725,931

1,447,065

278,866

-

-

Office equipment

299,843

34,307

-

(18,298)

315,852

Production equipment

109,975

6,910

-

-

116,885

Tools and equipment

268,386

23,673

14,423,911

812,323

(980,776)

Net Book Value

(2,264)

289,795

(20,562)

14,234,896

Depreciation Charge

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

Long term leasehold land

2,191,349

2,233,653

42,304

42,304

Buildings

3,669,864

3,775,990

106,126

106,126

Plant and machinery

1,131,975

935,845

301,325

180,762

Electrical installation

38,582

43,952

5,370

5,370

Renovation and signboard

67,219

11

13,442

-

Motor vehicles

829,798

1,108,664

278,866

287,594

Office equipment

104,472

119,676

34,307

35,965

Production equipment

29,237

36,147

6,910

7,594

Tools and equipment

79,376

62,914

23,673

21,261

8,141,872

8,316,852

812,323

686,976
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
COMPANY
COST

Balance as
at 1.1.18

Balance as
Additions at 31.12.18
RM

RM
Office equipment

10,343

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

10,343

Balance as Charge for Balance as
at 1.1.18
the year at 31.12.18

Office equipment

RM

RM

RM

6,718

789

7,507

Net Book Value

Office equipment

-

RM

Depreciation Charge

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

2,836

3,625

789

1,101

Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group are the following assets that were acquired under
finance lease arrangements:
2018

Motor vehicles

2017

Cost

Net Book
Value

Cost

Net Book
Value

RM

RM

RM

RM

1,295,930

765,835

1,295,930

1,105,037

Included in the motor vehicles of the Group, are two motor vehicles with net book value of RM461,253
(2017: RM626,722) that are held in trust for the Group by directors.

6.

GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION
Group

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries

2018

2017

RM

RM

1,109,776

1,109,776

Impairment tests for cash-generating unit (“CGU”) containing goodwill
The Group considers each subsidiary company as a single CGU and the carrying amount of goodwill is
allocated to the respective subsidiary companies.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculation. The value-in-use
calculation is determined using cash flows projections, based on financial budgets approved by
management, discounted at rates which reflect risks relating to the relevant CGU.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is based on the cost of borrowings of the Group,
throughout the calculation period. The growth rate used is consistent with the projected growth rate of the
CGU’s industry and economy.
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7.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Company
2018

2017

RM

RM

32,463,377

29,251,980

Unquoted shares in Malaysia, at cost
At 1 January
Addition

-

At 31 December

32,463,377

3,211,397
32,463,377

The subsidiary companies are:
Name of
Company

Equity Interest

Place of
Incorporation

2018

2017

Techfast Precision
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Manufacturing
and
distribution
of
specialised fasteners and related precision
turning and machining parts for the
electronics, telecommunication, computer
peripherals and automotive industries

Oriem Technology
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Manufacturing of epoxy encapsulant
materials for optoelectronics industries
and provision of training analytical and
consultancy services

Cape Technology
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100%

100%

Manufacturer of mould cleaning rubber
sheets and trading of epoxy encapsulant
materials for opto-electronics industries

Principal Activities

In the previous financial year, the Company acquired an additional 10% equity interest in the capital of
Oriem Technology Sdn Bhd (“Oriem”) and Cape Technology Sdn Bhd (“Cape”) for a total cash
consideration of RM3,211,397. As a result, the equity interest in Oriem and Cape has been increased from
90% to 100%.

8.

OTHER INVESTMENT
Group and Company

Club membership, at cost

2018

2017

RM

RM

62,000

62,000
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9.

INVENTORIES
Group

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Tooling and chemicals

Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales

10.

2018

2017

RM

RM

1,538,484

1,713,093

350,247

314,261

1,450,344

1,174,291

263,545

243,958

3,602,620

3,445,603

16,588,831

13,985,577

TRADE RECEIVABLES
The credit terms of trade receivables range from 30 to 90 days. Other credit terms are assessed and
approved on a case by case basis.
Group

Gross amount outstanding

2018

2017

RM

RM

6,893,295

6,295,736

Less: Allowance for impairment of receivables
(7,020)

(28,013)

Allowance for the year

-

(7,020)

Allowance written back

-

28,013

At 1 January

Bad debts written off
At 31 December

7,020
-

(7,020)

6,893,295

6,288,716

The currency exposure profile of trade receivables of the Group are as follows:
Group
2018

2017

RM

RM

Ringgit Malaysia

2,408,477

2,488,991

United States Dollar

4,308,319

3,567,594

145,876

222,266

Euro Dolar
Singapore Dollar
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11.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Group

12.

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

Other receivables

152,136

266,941

Deposits

147,251

141,189

Prepayments

104,929

116,934

404,316

525,064

-

-

3,000

3,000

-

-

3,000

3,000

DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS

Group

Fixed deposits
Money market deposits

Maturity periods (days)

2018

2017

RM

RM

3,235,882

2,423,901

930,000

608,925

4,165,882

3,032,826

7 to 365

14 to 365

The deposits of RM65,882 (2017: RM63,901) was pledged to a licensed bank for bank guarantee facility
granted to the Group. Included in deposits with licensed banks is Nil (2017: RM608,925) denominated in
US Dollar.
The effective interest rate of the deposits placed with licensed bank at the reporting date are range from
1.68% to 3.35% (2017 : 1.70% to 3.10%) per annum.

13.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
Group

At cost

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

3,752,059

4,071,805

3,752,059

3,742,696

Short term investment represents deposits placed with an investment fund management company for
investment in fixed income instruments.
The short term investment of the Group and the Company bears dividend yield at 3.30% (2017: 3.30%)
and 3.30% (2017: 3.30%) per annum respectively at the reporting date and is readily convertible to cash
with insignificant risk of changes in value.

Page 71

TECHFAST HOLDINGS BERHAD (647820-D)

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 Decem ber 2018 (cont’d)
14.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
The currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances is as follows:
Group

Ringgit Malaysia
United States Dollar
Renminbi
Euro Dollar
Singapore Dollar

15.

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

2,537,200

2,167,783

991,019

89,541

264,516

326,264

-

-

45,791

45,791

-

-

2,221

2,221

-

-

412

739

-

-

2,850,140

2,542,798

991,019

89,541

2018

2017

2018

2017

Number of
shares

Number of
shares

RM

RM

228,148,477 171,111,800

29,945,837

17,111,180

SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January
Effect of implementation of
Companies Act 2016

-

Bonus issue

-

At 31 December

57,036,677

228,148,477 228,148,477

-

7,130,989

-

5,703,668

29,945,837

29,945,837

In the previous financial year, the issued and fully paid share capital of the Company was increased from
RM17,111,180 to RM22,814,848 by way of bonus issue of 57,036,677 new ordinary shares via the
capitalisation of the share premium and capital reserve account on the basis of one (1) bonus share for
every existing three (3) ordinary shares held. The new ordinary shares issued in the previous financial year
ranked pari-passu in all aspects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.
In accordance with the Section 618 of Companies Act 2016, any amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of RM7,130,989 has become part of the Company’s share capital. Notwithstanding this
provision, the Company may within 24 months from the commencement of the Act, use the amount
standing to the credit of its share premium account of RM7,130,989 for purposes as set out in Section
618(3) of the Act. The period for utilisation has expired and the Company did not utilise the share premium
amounting to RM7,130,989.
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16.

RESERVES
Group

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

Non-distributable
Share premium
At 1 January

-

11,269,920

-

11,269,920

Bonus issue

-

(3,970,538)

-

(3,970,538)

Expenses related to bonus issue

-

(168,393)

-

(168,393)

Effect of implementation of
Companies Act 2016 (Note 15)

-

(7,130,989)

-

(7,130,989)

At 31 December

-

-

-

-

-

-

Capital reserve
At 1 January

-

Gain on resale of treasury shares

-

1,733,130

-

1,733,130

Bonus issue

-

(1,733,130)

-

(1,733,130)

At 31 December

-

-

-

-

-

Distributable
(Accumulated losses)/Retained profits

(3,692,089)

(5,390,497)

6,734,080

5,943,437

Total reserves

(3,692,089)

(5,390,497)

6,734,080

5,943,437

Pursuant to Section 618 of the Companies Act 2016, the amount standing to the credit of the Company’s
share premium account became part of the Company’s capital as disclosed in Note 15.
Included in expenses related to bonus issue is a professional fee amounting to RM20,000 paid to the
external auditors for their service to act as reporting accountant.
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17.

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Group
2018

2017

RM

RM

621,336

813,739

(201,605)

(192,403)

419,731

621,336

Within one year

224,400

224,400

Between two to five years

437,983

662,383

662,383

886,783

Less: Future interest charges

(41,047)

(73,044)

Present value of minimum finance lease payments

621,336

813,739

Total principal outstanding
Less:
Repayable within the next twelve months shown
under current liabilities
Repayable after the next twelve months
Represented by:
Minimum finance lease payments:

Reconciliation of movement between finance lease liabilities of the Group to cash flows arising from
finance activities:

Group

At 1 January
Drawdown of finance lease
Repayment of finance lease liabilities
At 31 December

18.

2018

2017

RM

RM

813,739

640,157

-

375,000

(192,403)

(201,418)

621,336

813,739

DEFERRED TAXATION
Group

At 1 January
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 23)
At 31 December
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18.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT’D)
The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) of the Group are as follows:
GROUP

Accelerated
Other
capital temporary
allowances differences

Total

RM

RM

RM

469,800

(13,000)

456,800

38,597

6,500

45,097

At 31 December 2018

508,397

(6,500)

501,897

At 1 January 2017

430,600

40,100

470,700

39,200

(53,100)

(13,900)

469,800

(13,000)

456,800

At 1 January 2018
Recognised in profit or loss

Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2017

19.

TRADE PAYABLES
The credit terms of trade payables range from 30 to 60 days.
The currency exposure profile of trade payables of the Group are as follows:
Group

Ringgit Malaysia
United States Dollar

20.

2018

2017

RM

RM

1,082,901

1,192,037

43,051

204,986

1,125,952

1,397,023

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Group

Other payables
Accruals

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

456,821

603,075

14,712

5,081

1,973,228

1,558,016

579,662

469,884

2,430,049

2,161,091

594,374

474,965
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21.

REVENUE
Group

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

30,300,662

26,665,865

These represent:
Sales of goods
Management fees

22.

-

-

-

-

1,440,000

1,440,000

Dividend income

-

-

3,700,200

3,930,090

Interest income

120,796

117,664

120,796

117,664

30,421,458

26,783,529

5,260,996

5,487,754

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Group

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

67,000

65,000

15,000

13,000

2,000

-

2,000

-

- current year

13,000

-

13,000

-

- underprovision in prior year

13,000

9,000

13,000

-

7,020

-

This is stated after charging:
Auditors’ remunerations:
Statutory audits
- current year
- underprovision in prior year
Other services

Allowance for impairment of receivables
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ fees
Finance lease interest
Property, plant and equipment written off
Professional fees paid to company and firms
connected to directors of the Company
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange
Research and development expenses
Staff costs

9,000
-

812,323

686,976

789

1,101

2,395,046

2,185,527

1,418,369

1,329,560

348,000

280,000

138,000

120,000

31,997

37,640

-

-

3,413

18

-

-

101,577

107,800

69,477

73,800

26,997

51,621

-

-

9,756

5,390

-

-

5,943,684

5,198,909

273,795

231,743

And crediting:
Allowance for impairment of receivables
written back
Interest income
Income from short term investment
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Realised gain on foreign exchange

Page 76

-

28,013

-

-

110,475

101,360

-

-

1,200

36,199

-

-

15,578

149

-

-

111,328

49,386

-

-

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Decem ber 2018 (cont’d)

22.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)
Group

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

4,691,406

4,061,306

235,500

200,200

506,996

460,961

32,290

27,525

Staff costs
Salaries, bonuses and wages
EPF, SOCSO and EIS contribution
Other benefits

745,282

676,642

6,005

4,018

5,943,684

5,198,909

273,795

231,743

The number of employees (excluding directors) of the Group and of the Company as at the end of the
financial year were 144 (2017: 130) and 3 (2017: 3) respectively.
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(i)

Company’s Directors
Company

Group
2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

Executive Directors
Fees

160,000

120,000

-

-

Salaries

883,116

883,200

883,116

883,200

Bonuses

294,374

220,779

294,374

220,779

Defined contribution plan (“EPF”)

223,763

209,760

223,763

209,760

1,516

1,421

1,516

1,421

1,562,769

1,435,160

1,402,769

1,315,160

138,000

120,000

138,000

120,000

15,600

14,400

15,600

14,400

153,600

134,400

153,600

134,400

SOCSO and EIS contribution

Non-Executive Directors
Fees
Allowances

(ii)

Other Directors – Directors of the Subsidiairies
Group

Fees

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

50,000

40,000

-

-

Salaries

480,000

480,000

-

-

Bonuses

390,383

282,776

-

-

Defined contribution plan (“EPF”)

104,448

91,533

-

-

1,846

1,658

-

-

1,026,677

895,967

-

-

SOCSO and EIS contribution
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22.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)
(iii)

Total Directors’ Remuneration
Group

Salaries
Allowances

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

1,363,116

1,363,200

883,116

883,200

15,600

14,400

15,600

14,400

Fees

348,000

280,000

138,000

120,000

Bonuses

684,757

503,555

294,374

220,779

Defined contribution plan (“EPF”)

328,211

301,293

223,763

209,760

SOCSO and EIS contribution

(iv)

3,362

3,079

1,516

1,421

2,743,046

2,465,527

1,556,369

1,449,560

Estimated Monetary Value of Benefits-in-Kind
Group
2018

2017

RM

RM

Executive Directors of the Company

55,700

53,000

A director of a subsidiary company

23,950

24,550

The Directors’ remuneration (including benefits-in-kind) of the Directors of the Company during the
financial year ended 31 December 2018 fall within the following bands:
Range of Remuneration
RM

No. of
Executive
Directors

No. of
NonExecutive
Directors

50,000 and below

-

5

600,001 to 650,000

1

-

850,001 to 900,000

1

-

Total

2

5
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23.

TAXATION
Based on the results for the financial year:
Group

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

1,543,460

1,424,433

-

-

Current tax
Malaysian Income Tax
Deferred taxation (Note 18)
Under/(Over)provision in prior year
Tax expense for the financial year

45,097

(13,900)

-

-

1,588,557

1,410,533

-

-

24,348

(3,004)

-

-

1,612,905

1,407,529

-

-

Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax
rate:
Group
Company
2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

Profit before taxation

5,592,793

5,078,697

3,072,123

3,455,150

Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24%
(2017: 24%)

1,342,270

1,218,887

737,310

829,236

251,907

200,334

179,729

142,225

(917,039)

(971,461)

Non-allowable expenses
Non-taxable income
Under/(Over)provision in prior year
Tax expense for the financial year

(5,620)

(8,688)

1,588,557

1,410,533

-

-

24,348

(3,004)

-

-

1,612,905

1,407,529

-

-

The Group and the Company have potential deferred tax assets not recognised in the Financial
Statements under the liability method in respect of the following deductible temporary differences:
Group and Company

Unabsorbed capital allowances

2018

2017

RM

RM

(5,858)

(4,894)

The above deferred tax assets are available indefinitely to offset against future taxable profit of the Group
and of the Company in which those items arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these items as they may not be used to offset future taxable profit of the Group and of the Company.
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24.

EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
Basic earnings per ordinary share:
The basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year has been calculated based on the consolidated
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.
Group

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

2018

2017

RM

RM

3,979,888

3,526,507

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
228,148,477 171,111,800
Adjusted for:
- treasury shares
- bonus issue

-

(1,731,096)

-

57,036,677

228,148,477 226,417,381
Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen)

25.

1.74

1.56

DIVIDENDS
Group and Company
2018

2017

RM

RM

Final single tier dividend 0.5 sen per share in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2017 (2017: Final
single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per share in respect the
financial year ended 31 December 2016)

1,140,740

845,596

Interim single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per share in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Interim
single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per share in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2017)

1,140,740

855,559

2,281,480

1,701,155

Paid:
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26.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a)

Identities of related parties
Parties are considered to be related to the Company if the Company has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities. The
Company has a related party relationship with its directors, key management personnel and entities
within the same group of companies.

(b)

Related party transactions
Group

Company

2018

2017

2018

2017

RM

RM

RM

RM

Subsidiary companies
Management fees

-

-

1,440,000 1,440,000

40,827

43,500

8,727

9,500

60,000

60,000

60,000

60,000

750

4,300

750

4,300

Company connected to a director
Professional fees payable to:
- ML Taxation Services Sdn Bhd
Firms connected to directors
Professional fees payable to:
- Michael Lim & Co.
- A.T. Aun & Associates

The directors are of the opinion that all the transactions above have been entered into in the normal
course of business and have been established on terms and conditions that are not materially
different from that obtainable in transactions with unrelated parties.
(c)

Compensation of the key management personnel
Key management personnel are defined as a person having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The key
management personnel includes all the Directors of the Group.
The remuneration of the key management personnel who are also the Directors of the Group are
disclosed in Note 22 to the Financial Statements.

27.

SEGMENTAL REPORTING
The Group has two reportable segments that are based on information reported internally to the Group
Managing Director. The reportable segments are summarised as follows:
(i)

Manufacturing of self-clinching fasteners, electronic hardware and precision turned parts; and

(ii)

Manufacturing of mould cleaning rubber sheets and LED epoxy encapsulant materials.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate assets and income
taxes.
The inter-segment transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business and have been
established on terms and conditions that are not materially different from those obtainable in transactions
with unrelated parties.
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SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONT’D)
2018

Mould
cleaning
Self-clinching
fasteners, rubber sheets
electronic
and LED
hardware and
epoxy
precision encapsulant
turned parts
materials

Elimination Consolidation

RM

RM

RM

RM

13,394,987

17,026,471

5,140,200

2,294,489

(7,434,689)

-

18,535,187

19,320,960

(7,434,689)

30,421,458

1,322,899

4,301,891

-

5,624,790

(21,084)

(10,913)

-

(31,997)

Profit before taxation

1,301,815

4,290,978

-

5,592,793

Taxation

(468,070)

(1,144,835)

-

(1,612,905)

833,745

3,146,143

-

3,979,888

16,143,228

13,728,956

-

29,872,184

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales and revenue
Total

-

30,421,458

Results
Segment results (external)
Finance costs

Profit for the year
Other information
Segment assets

1,109,776

Unallocated corporate asset

30,981,960
Segment liabilities

2,325,485

2,402,727

-

4,728,212

Capital expenditure

591,533

49,223

-

640,756

Depreciation and amortisation

522,076

290,247

-

812,323

Interest expense

21,084

10,913

-

31,997

Interest income

(1,200)

(110,475)

-

(111,675)

Non-cash items other than depreciation
and amortisation:
- Unrealised loss on foreign exchange

16,576

10,421

-

26,997

-

-

(15,578)

-

3,413

- Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
- Property, plant and equipment
written off
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27.

SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONT’D)
2017

Mould
cleaning
Self-clinching
fasteners, rubber sheets
electronic
and LED
hardware and
epoxy
precision encapsulant
turned parts
materials

Elimination Consolidation

RM

RM

RM

RM

10,801,844

15,981,685

5,370,090

1,960,535

(7,330,625)

16,171,934

17,942,220

(7,330,625)

1,133,863

3,982,474

-

5,116,337

(23,326)

(14,314)

-

(37,640)

Profit before taxation

1,110,537

3,968,160

-

5,078,697

Taxation

(423,990)

(983,539)

-

(1,407,529)

686,547

2,984,621

-

3,671,168

14,873,812

13,470,762

-

28,344,574

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales and revenue
Total

-

26,783,529
26,783,529

Results
Segment results (external)
Finance costs

Profit for the year
Other information
Segment assets
Unallocated corporate asset

1,109,776
29,454,350

Segment liabilities

2,508,534

Capital expenditure

-

4,899,010

1,347,611
392,426

20,598

-

1,368,209

294,550

-

686,976

23,326

14,314

-

37,640

Interest income
Non-cash items other than depreciation
and amortisation:
- Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign
exchange

(36,199)

(101,360)

-

(137,559)

(80,501)

132,122

-

51,621

- Allowance for impairment of
receivables written back

(28,013)

-

-

(28,013)

- Allowance for impairment of
receivables

7,020

-

-

7,020

Depreciation and amortisation
Interest expense

2,390,476

- Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

-

(149)

-

(149)

- Property, plant and equipment
written off

-

18

-

18
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a)

Financial Risk Management Policies
The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are
available for the development of the Group’s business whilst managing its risks. The Group operates
within clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and the Group’s policy is not to
engage in speculative transactions.
The main risks and corresponding management policies arising from the Group’s and the
Company’s normal course of business are as follows:
(i)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk arises on interest-bearing financial instruments recognised in the
statement of financial position. It will affect the Group’s and the Company’s income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposures to interest rate risk for changes in interest rates
mainly arise from its deposits placed with financial institutions to earn interest income.
Interest rate risk is managed by the Group and the Company on an on-going basis with the
primary objective to obtain the most favourable interest rates available for its deposits.
Sensitivity analysis for interest rate
At the reporting date, if interest rates had been 50 basis point lower/higher, with all other
variables held constant the impact is immaterial to the Group’s and the Company’s profit
after tax.

(ii)

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk mostly on its sales, bank balances and
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily US Dollar, Singapore Dollar and
Euro Dollar.
Based on carrying amounts as at the reporting date, foreign currency denominated financial
assets and liabilities which expose the Group to currency risk are disclosed below:
GROUP
At 31 December 2018

USD

SGD

EUR

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

4,308,319

30,623

145,876

4,484,818

264,516

412

2,221

267,149

4,572,835

31,035

148,097

4,751,967

Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Net exposure
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a)

Financial Risk Management Policies (cont’d)
(ii)

Foreign Currency Risk (cont’d)
GROUP
USD

SGD

EUR

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

3,567,594

9,865

222,266

3,799,725

-

608,925

At 31 December 2017
Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Deposits with licensed bank

608,925

-

Cash and bank balances

326,264

739

2,221

329,224

4,502,783

10,604

224,487

4,737,874

Trade payables

(140,246)

-

-

(140,246)

Net exposure

4,362,537

10,604

224,487

4,597,628

Financial Liabilities

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
The following demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit after tax to a reasonably
possible change in the USD, SGD and EUR exchange rate against the functional currency
of the Group, with all other variables held constant.
Group

USD

- strengthened by 5% against RM
- weakened by 5% against RM

SGD

- strengthened by 5% against RM
- weakened by 5% against RM

EUR

- strengthened by 5% against RM
- weakened by 5% against RM

(iii)

2018

2017

RM

RM

226,490

218,127

(226,490)

(218,127)

1,552

530

(1,552)

(530)

7,405

11,224

(7,405)

(11,224)

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk the Group and the Company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arise
principally from various payables.
The Group and the Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient working funds
to enable them to meet their normal operating commitments.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a)

Financial Risk Management Policies (cont’d)
(iii)

Liquidity Risk (cont’d)
The table below analyses the maturity profile of the financial liabilities (including derivative
financial liabilities) of the Group and of the Company based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

Group

Contractual
Undiscounted
Carrying
Cash
Amount
Flows

Within
1 Year

1-5 Years
RM

RM

RM

RM

3,556,001

3,556,001

3,556,001

621,336

662,383

224,400

437,983

4,177,337

4,218,384

3,780,401

437,983

3,558,114

3,558,114

3,558,114

-

At 31 December 2018
Trade and other payables
Finance lease liabilities

-

At 31 December 2017
Trade and other payables
Finance lease liabilities

Company

813,739

886,783

224,400

662,383

4,371,853

4,444,897

3,782,514

662,383

Contractual
Undiscounted
Carrying
Cash
Flows
Amount

Within
1 Year

1-5 Years
RM

RM

RM

RM

594,374

594,374

594,374

-

474,965

474,965

474,965

-

At 31 December 2018
Other payables
At 31 December 2017
Other payables
(iv)

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instruments fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk, or
the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises from mainly from trade and other receivables.
The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the application of credit approvals, credit
limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis. For other financial assets (including
cash and cash equivalents), the Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with
high credit rating counterparties.
The Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of trade receivables. Any
receivables having significant balances past due or more than 180 days, which are deemed
to have higher credit risk, are monitored individually.
Exposure to credit risk
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of
financial position .
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a)

Financial Risk Management Policies (cont’d)
(iv)

Credit Risk (cont’d)
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
The Group applies the simplified model of recognising lifetime expected credit losses for all
trade receivables as these items do not have a significant financing component.
In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade receivables have been assessed on a
collective basis based on shared credit risk characteristics and grouped on the days past
due.
Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past five years. The Group
also considers difference between (a) economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected (b) current conditions and (c) the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. Nevertheless, the Group believes that
these factors are immaterial for the purpose of impairment calculation for the year.
Based on the management’s assessment, the probability of the default of trade receivables
is low and hence, no loss allowance has been made.
The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group are as follows:

2018
Not past due

Gross

Individual
Impairment

Net

RM

RM

RM

5,873,796

-

5,873,796

1-30 days

740,353

-

740,353

31-60 days

203,319

-

203,319

75,827

-

75,827

1,019,499

-

1,019,499

6,893,295

-

6,893,295

Past due:

Over 60 days

2017
Not past due

Gross

Individual
Impairment

Net

RM

RM

RM

4,718,997

-

4,718,997

1,134,737

-

1,134,737

347,908

-

347,908

94,094

(7,020)

87,074

1,576,739

(7,020)

1,569,719

6,295,736

(7,020)

6,288,716

Past due:
1-30 days
31-60 days
Over 60 days
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a)

Financial Risk Management Policies (cont’d)
(iv)

Credit Risk (cont’d)
The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM1,019,499 (2017: RM1,569,719) that are
past due at the reporting date but not impaired. These receivables are creditworthy debtors
with good payment records in the past. Directors are of the view that the balance due can
be fully recovered in near future.
Credit risk concentration profile
As at the reporting date, approximately 31.3% (2017: 37.0%) of trade receivables of the
Group were due from two major customers. In addition, the Group also determines
concentration of credit risk by monitoring the geographical region of its trade receivables on
an on-going basis. The credit risk concentration profile by geographical areas of trade
receivables is as follows:
2018

2017

RM

RM

Malaysia

2,409,598

2,489,060

USA

1,383,049

1,390,270

Europe
Asia

291,531

267,782

2,809,117

2,148,624

6,893,295

6,295,736

Measurement in the allowance for impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
On the date of initial application of MFRS 9, there was no adjustments on the ending
balance of the loss allowance reported under the previous MFRS 139 to derive the opening
balance loss allowance determined in accordance with MFRS 9.
The movement in the loss allowance of the Group in respect of trade receivables during the
financial year is as follows:
2018

2017

RM

RM

7,020

28,013

Loss allowance – individual impairment
At 1 January per MFRS 9
Addition

-

7,020

Reversal

-

(28,013)

(7,020)

-

Bad debt written off
At 31 December
(b)

-

7,020

Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The carrying amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company
as at the reporting date are approximate fair value due to the relative short term maturity.
The fair value of financial lease liabilities is estimated by discounting the expected future cashflows
using the current interest rates for liabilities similar risk profile.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(c)

Fair Value Hierarchy
As the financial assets and liabilities of the Group and of the Company are not carried at fair values
by any valuation method, the fair value hierarchy analysis is not presented.

(d)

Classification of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised under MFRS 9 as follows:
2018
(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost (AC)

(ii)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (FL)

GROUP

2018

Carrying
Amount

AC

FL

RM

RM

RM

Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables

7,192,682

7,192,682

-

Short term investment

3,752,059

3,752,059

-

Deposits with licensed banks

4,165,882

4,165,882

-

Cash and bank balances

2,850,140

2,850,140

-

17,960,763

17,960,763

-

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Financial lease liabilities

(3,556,001)

-

(3,556,001)

(621,336)

-

(621,336)

(4,177,337)

-

(4,177,337)

COMPANY

2018

Carrying
Amount

AC

FL

RM

RM

RM

Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables
Short term investment
Cash and bank balances

3,000

3,000

-

3,752,059

3,752,059

-

991,019

991,019

-

4,746,078

4,746,078

-

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables

(594,374)

-

(594,374)
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(d)

Classification of financial instruments (cont’d)
2017
(i)

Loan and receivables (L&R)

(ii)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (FL)

GROUP

2017

Carrying
Amount

L&R

FL

RM

RM

RM

Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables

6,696,846

6,696,846

-

Deposits with licensed banks

3,032,826

3,032,826

-

Short term investment

4,071,805

4,071,805

-

Cash and bank balances

2,542,798

2,542,798

-

16,344,275

16,344,275

-

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Financial lease liabilities

(3,558,114)

-

(3,558,114)

(813,739)

-

(813,739)

(4,371,853)

-

(4,371,853)

COMPANY

2017

Carrying
Amount

L&R

FL

RM

RM

RM

Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables
Short term investment
Cash and bank balances

3,000

3,000

-

3,742,696

3,742,696

-

89,541

89,541

-

3,835,237

3,835,237

-

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
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29.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objective in managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions or expansion of the Group. The Group may adjust the capital structure by issuing new shares,
returning capital to shareholders or adjusting the amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders.
For capital management purposes, the Group considers shareholders’ equity and total debt to be the key
components in the Group’s capital structure. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing
ratio. The ratio is calculated as the total debt net of cash and cash equivalents to total equity. Total equity
is the sum of total equity attributable to shareholders. The net gearing ratio as at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017, which are within the Group’s objectives for capital management, are as follows:
Group

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 12,13 & 14)
Total borrowings (Note 17)
Net cash
Total equity
Debt to equity ratios

2018

2017

RM

RM

(10,768,081)

(9,647,429)

621,336

813,739

(10,146,745)

(8,833,690)

26,253,748

24,555,340

Nil

Nil
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Statement By Directors
We, LIM TOCK OOI and YAP YOON SING, being two of the Directors of TECHFAST HOLDINGS
BERHAD, do hereby state on behalf of the Directors that, in our opinion, the Financial Statements set out on
pages 41 to 91 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company at 31 DECEMBER 2018 and of its financial
performance and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

LIM TOCK OOI

YAP YOON SING

Kuala Lumpur
Dated: 2 April 2019

Statutory Declaration

I, LIM TOCK OOI (MIA NO. 1094), being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of
TECHFAST HOLDINGS BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the Financial Statements set out
on pages 41 to 91 are to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration
conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act,
1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above named
LIM TOCK OOI (MIA NO. 1094)
at Petaling Jaya, in the state of Selangor
on 2 April 2019

Before me,
NG SAY HUNG
B185
Pesuruhjaya Sumpah
Malaysia
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of

Techfast Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 647820-D)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
We have audited the Financial Statements of Techfast Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then
ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out
on pages 41 to 91.
In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the Financial Statements of the Group and the Company for the current financial year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements of the Group and the Company as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Carrying value on property, plant and equipment

Audit procedures over the risk that property, plant
and equipment may be impaired

The carrying value of property, plant and
equipment is disclosed in Note 5 to the Financial
Statements.

We assessed the reasonableness of the
remaining useful life of the property, plant and
equipment.

We identified the carrying value of the property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the Financial
Statements as a whole and also the impairment
assessment by management requires significant
judgement.

We reviewed and checked the ownership and
physical existence of major property, plant and
equipment.
We also reviewed the insurance coverage of
major items.
We assessed and reviewed whether there is any
indication that the assets may be impaired and the
adequacy of impairment loss on the property,
plant and equipment.
Based on our procedures performed, we did not
note any significant exceptions.
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Techfast Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company Number. 647820-D) (cont’d)
Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Impairment on receivables

Audit procedures over the risk that receivables
may be impaired

The Group carries significant receivables as
disclosed in Note 10 to the Financial Statements.

We reviewed company policy in relation to the
impairment on doubtful debts calculation.

This assessment on the recoverability of
receivables is significant to our audit as it involves
significant management judgement and estimation
uncertainty in analysing historical payment pattern
and customers’ creditworthiness and is also
affected by expected future market and economic
condition.

We reviewed the ageing analysis of receivables
and tested the reliability thereof.
We assessed the receivables collections
subsequent to the year end on material balances.
We
received
and
examined
customer
correspondences,
settlement
plans
and
repayment schedules regarding the action taken
by management to recover overdue amounts.
We also assessed the reasonableness and
adequacy of the allowance for impairment
recognised.
Based on our procedures performed, we did not
note any significant exceptions.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report and Directors’ Report, but does not include the Financial Statements of
the Group and of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group and of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Techfast Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 647820-D)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements of the Group and of
the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
internal control of the Group and of the Company.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.



Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Financial Statements of the Group. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our auditors’ report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Techfast Holdings Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company Number. 647820-D) (cont’d)
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

TAI, YAPP & CO
AF 0205
Chartered Accountants

YAPP HOCK HOE
00723/03/2020 J
Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
2 April 2019
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List of Properties

Registered/
Beneficial
Owner

Title and Location/
Postal Address

Date of
Description /
Acquisition Land Use

Age of
Building
(Years)

Land
Area
(sq. ft)

Built-up
Area
(sq. ft.)

Tenure
and
Expiry
Date

Cost
(RM’000)

Net Book
Value
As at
31.12.2018
(RM’000)

39,579

29,419

Leasehold

3,746

2,882

H.S(D) 113071,
PT 43, Seksyen 23,
Mukim Bandar Shah
Alam, Daerah Petaling,
State of Selangor/
No. 11 Jalan Pasaran
23/5, Seksyen 23,
40300 Shah Alam
Selangor

29.05.2002 Industrial Land/
Single Storey
Detached
Factory with a
three-storey
Front Office
Annexed

21

Techfast
Precision Sdn
Bhd

GRN 43023, Lot 33686
Mukim Klang, District of
Klang, State of Selangor/
No. 3C Block D,
No. 4A Block H
No. 8C Block K, Jalan
Tokoh 25/28, Taman Sri
Muda, 40400 Shah Alam,
Selangor

06.08.2003 3 Apartment
Units/Staff
Quarters

30

-

2,259
(Aggregate)

Freehold

249

102

Techfast
Precision Sdn
Bhd

GRN 43023, Lot 33686
Mukim Klang District of
Selangor
State of Selangor/
No. 4C, Block M
No. 10C, Block L
No. 2C, Block R
No. 2C, Block N
No. 10B, Block L
Jalan Tokoh 25/28
Taman Sri Muda 40400
Shah Alam, Selangor

5 Apartment
Units/Staff
Quarters

30

-

4,275
(Aggregate)

Freehold

476

182

Techfast
Precision Sdn
Bhd

99 Years
Expiry date:
14.08.2096

08.08.2005
08.05.2005
26.10.2005
26.10.2005
26.10.2005

Techfast
Precision Sdn
Bhd

GRN 43023 Lot 33686
Mukim Klang District of
Selangor State of
Selangor/
No. 6C, Block K
No. 8B, Block L
Jalan Tokoh 25/28
Taman Sri Muda 40400
Shah Alam Selangor

06.12.2006 2 Apartment
Units/Staff
Quarters

30

-

1,803
(Aggregate)

Freehold

183

73

Cape
Technology
Sdn Bhd

Title No : H.S(D) 11995
P.T. No 1888, Mukim 12
Daerah Barat Daya,
Penang. Plot 25,
Phase 4, Non- FTZ,
Bayan Lepas Industrial
Estate 11900 Penang

25.01.2002 Industrial Land/
Single Storey
Detached
Factory with a
double storey
front office
Annexed

27

43,846

24,000

Leasehold

2,814

1,895

66 years
Expiry:
21 Feb
2058
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Analysis of Shareholdings
as at 28 March 2019 (cont’d)
Total Number of Issued Shares :

228,148,477

Issued Share Capital

RM29,945,837

:

Class of Shares

:

Ordinary Shares

Voting Rights

:

One vote per ordinary share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Shareholders

Shares held

Number

% of
shareholders

Number

% of issued
share
capital

Less than 100 shares

240

8.168

10,223

0.004

100 – 1,000 shares

238

8.100

120,215

0.052

1,001 – 10,000 shares

1,088

37.031

6,627,587

2.904

10,001 – 100,000 shares

1,156

39.346

39,084,975

17.131

214

7.283

113,554,984

49.772

2

0.068

68,750,493

30.134

100.000 228,148,477

100.000

Size of shareholders

100,001 – 11,407,422*
11,407,423 and above**
Total

2,938

Notes:
* Less than 5% of Issued Shares
** 5% and above of Issued Shares

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 28 MARCH 2019
Direct interest
Name of Directors
Yap Yoon Sing

Number of
shares

% of shares

-

Lim Tock Ooi

-

Aun Ah Thim

66,666

Deemed interest

0.029

Number of
shares

% of shares

#

16.465

@

13.668

220,000^

0.096
0.003

37,565,309
31,185,184

Datuk Chan Chong Choon

-

-

8,800*

Lai Hui Yeen

-

-

-

-

Khor Joe Ann

-

-

-

-

Notes:
# By virtue of his substantial shareholdings in AVB Ventures Sdn Bhd (Company No. 1032333-X)
@ By virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Botanic Cove Sdn Bhd (Company No. 1032374-P)
^ By virtue of his wife, Ho Siew Ming’s shareholdings in the Company
* Held through HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd, Hong Leong Bank Bhd (Company No. 270268-W)

LIST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 28 MARCH 2019
Direct interest
No.

Name of Shareholders

Deemed interest

Number of
shares

% of shares

Number of
shares

% of shares

1.

AVB Ventures Sdn Bhd

37,565,309

16.465

-

-

2.

Botanic Cove Sdn Bhd

31,185,184

13.668

-

-

Page 98

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Analysis of Shareholdings

as at 28 March 2019

LIST OF THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 28 MARCH 2019
No.

Name of Shareholders

No. of Shares

%

1.

AVB VENTURES SDN BHD

37,565,309

16.465

2.

BOTANIC COVE SDN BHD

31,185,184

13.668

3.

LU ENG SHEAN

10,082,666

4.419

4.

GONG WOOI TEIK

7,932,000

3.476

5.

7,227,933

3.168

6.

CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND BOARD
CHUAN KITRATIPRASAN

6,876,100

3.013

7.

WEENA TAY WEI WEI

6,587,733

2.887

8.

HSBC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
HSBC (M) TRUSTEE BHD FOR RHB SMALL CAP
OPPORTUNITY UNIT TRUST

3,990,000

1.748

9.

CITIGROUP NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR NUM SIEW YOKE

3,238,566

1.419

10.

CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TAMPATAN) SDN BHD
EXEMPT AN FOR CITIBANK NEW YORK (NORGES BANK 14)

3,126,300

1.370

11.

YAP YUNG YING

2,980,000

1.306

12.

RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR NUM SIEW YOKE

1,737,966

0.761

13.

NUM SIEW YOKE

1,562,666

0.684

14.

CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB BANK FOR MAK TIAN MENG

1,517,533

0.665

15.

LIM TOH MENG

1,500,000

0.657

16.

LIM TIOK HEONG

1,332,666

0.584

17.

ONG ENG KHOON

1,200,000

0.525

18.

DB (MALAYSIA) NOMINEE (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
EXEMPT AN FOR DEUTSCHE BANK AG SINGAPORE
(MAYBANK SG PWM)

1,176,400

0.515

19.

PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR OOI AI SUAN

1,068,000

0.468

20.

WONG YOKE MOI

1,068,000

0.468

21.

LIM TOH HOW

1,012,000

0.443

22.

CHENG YEAN YUN @ TAY YAN HOON

942,833

0.413

23.

PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD PLEDGED
SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR NG TEE YEW

939,333

0.411

24.

LIM TOH MENG

880,000

0.385

25.

KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD RAKUTEN
TRADE SDN BHD FOR TAN FOH HUA

850,000

0.372

26.

CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD CIMB
FOR NUM SIEW YOKE

806,666

0.353

27.

FOO NYUK YONG

800,000

0.350

28.

HASHIMOTO YUKIMASA

800,000

0.350

29.

TAN KA LIN

800,000

0.350

30.

WOON YUN SHIN

748,000

0.327

141,533,854

62.035

TOTAL
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of Techfast Holdings Berhad will be
held at Room Alhambra I & II, Level M1, Hotel Melia Kuala Lumpur, 16 Jalan Imbi, 55100 Kuala Lumpur on
Friday, 24 May 2019 at 10.00 a.m. for the following businesses:
A G E N D A
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

(Please refer to
Explanatory
Notes 1 below)

2.

To approve the payment of final single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per ordinary share for
the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Resolution 1

3.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM138,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2018.

Resolution 2

4.

To approve the payment of Directors’ remuneration of RM15,600 (excluding Directors’
fees) to the Non-Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Resolution 3

5.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees not exceeding RM160,000 for the financial
year ending 31 December 2019 and RM80,000 for the period from 1 January 2020 until
the 16th AGM to Non-Executive Directors.

Resolution 4

6.

To approve the payment of Directors’ remuneration (excluding Directors’ fees) not
exceeding RM20,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2019 and RM10,000
for the period from 1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM to Non-Executive Directors.

Resolution 5

7.

To re-elect the following Directors who retire in accordance with the Company’s
Constitution:
- Article 74
i) Yap Yoon Sing
- Article 81
ii) Lai Hui Yeen
iii) Khor Joe Ann
- Article 81

8.

To re-appoint Messrs Tai, Yapp & Co. as Auditors of the Company until the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorize the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

Resolution 6
Resolution 7
Resolution 8
Resolution 9

SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:
Ordinary Resolutions
9.

Authority to Allot and Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 76 of the
Companies Act, 2016
“THAT pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2016 and subject to the approvals
of the relevant governmental/regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby
empowered to issue and allot shares in the capital of the Company, at any time to such
persons and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors
may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares
to be issued does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued
shares of the Company for the time being and the Directors be and are also empowered
to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued
on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
AND THAT such authority shall commence immediately upon the passing of this
Resolution and continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company.”
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10.

Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase Its Own
Shares (“Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority”)

Resolution 11

“THAT subject always to the compliance with Section 127 of the Companies Act, 2016
(“Act”) and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations, approval be and is hereby
given to the Company, to purchase such amount of ordinary shares in the Company as
may be determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) and upon such terms and conditions and
for such purposes as the Directors may in their discretion deem fit, subject further to the
following:
(a)

the aggregate number of shares to be purchased and held pursuant to this
resolution does not exceed 10% of the existing total number of issued shares of
the Company (“Shares”) including the shares previously purchased and retained
as Treasury Shares (if any);

(b)

the maximum funds to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of purchasing
its own shares shall not exceed total retained profits of the Company as at 31
December 2018;

(c)

the authority conferred by this resolution shall commence immediately upon the
passing of this ordinary resolution and will continue to be in force until:
i)
the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company, at which time the said
authority will lapse unless by an ordinary resolution passed at a general
meeting of the Company, the authority is renewed, either unconditionally or
subject to conditions; or
ii) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM after that date is
required by law to be held; or
iii) the authority is revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders in a general meeting.
whichever occurs first.

(d)

upon completion of the purchase(s) of the Shares by the Company, the Directors
of the Company be and are hereby authorised to deal with the Shares in the
following manner:
i)
to cancel the Shares so purchase; or
ii) to retain the Shares so purchased as treasury shares held by the Company;
or
iii) to retain part of the Shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel the
remainder; or
iv) to distribute the treasury shares as dividends to shareholders; or
v) to resell the treasury shares on Bursa Malaysia in accordance with the ACE
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia; or
vi) to transfer the treasury shares for the purpose of an employees’ share
scheme; or
vii) to transfer the treasury shares as purchase consideration; or
viii) any combination of the above.
and in any other manner as prescribed by the Act, rules, regulations and orders
made pursuant to the Act, Ace Market Listing Requirements and any other
relevant authorities for the time being in force;

AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take all such
steps to give full effect to the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority with full
power to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as may
be imposed by the relevant authorities and/or to do all such acts and things as the
Directors may deem fit and expedient in the best interest of the Company.”
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Special Resolution
11.

Proposed Adoption of the New Constitution of the Company

Resolution 12

“THAT approval be and is hereby given to revoke the existing Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company with immediate effect and in place thereof, the
proposed new Constitution of the Company as set out in Part B of the Circular to
Shareholders dated 23 April 2019 be and is hereby adopted as the Constitution of the
Company AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to
assent to any modification, variation and/or amendment as may be required by the
relevant authorities and to do all acts and things and take all such steps as may be
considered necessary to give full effect to the foregoing.”

NOTICE OF FINAL SINGLE TIER DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT AND PAYMENT
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT a final single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per ordinary share for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018, if approved by shareholders at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting, will be paid
on 25 June 2019 to the depositors whose names appear in the Record of Depositors of the Company at the close
of business on 10 June 2019.
A depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend in respect of:
(a) Shares transferred to the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on 10 June 2019 in respect of
the ordinary transfer; and
(b) Shares brought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the Rules
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By order of the Board

Chin Ooi Wee (LS 0006616)
Lim Li Shiang (MIA 19661)

Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
23 April 2019

NOTES:
1.

Only members registered in the Record of Depositors as at 15 May 2019 shall be eligible to attend the
meeting or appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

2.

Where a member is an authorized nominee, as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories)
Act 1991, it may appoint at least one (1) proxy but not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities
account it holds which is credited with ordinary shares of the Company. The appointment of two (2) proxies in
respect of any particular securities account shall be invalid unless the authorized nominee specifies the
proportion of its shareholding to be represented by each proxy.

3.

Where a member is an exempt authorized nominee (“EAN”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central
Depositories) Act 1991 which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one
securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the EAN may appoint
in respect of each omnibus account it holds. The appointment of two (2) or more proxies in respect of any
particular Omnibus Account shall be invalid unless the EAN specifies the proportion of its shareholding to be
represented by each proxy.

Page 102

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont’d)
NOTES (cont’d):
4.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies. Where a
member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each
proxy, failing which the appointment shall be invalid. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the
proxy. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company shall have the same rights as the
member to speak at the meeting. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company, an advocate, an
approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office at Suites 7.21 &
th
7.22, 7 Floor, Imbi Plaza, Jalan Imbi, 55100 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for
holding the meeting, or any adjournment thereof

6.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly
authorized in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or
attorney duly authorised.

EXPLANATORY NOTES
1.

Agenda No. 1
This Agenda item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 248 and Section 340(1)(a) of the
Companies Act 2016 does not require a formal approval of the shareholders and hence this Agenda item is
not put forward for voting.

2.

Agenda No. 3 & 4 – Resolution 2 & 3
Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 2016 provides amongst others, that “the fees“ of the directors and “any
benefits” payable to the directors of a listed company and its subsidiaries shall be approved at a general
th
meeting. In this respect, the Board agreed that the shareholders’ approval shall be sought at the 15 AGM
on the Directors’ fees and Directors’ remuneration payable for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 in two (2) separate resolutions as below:


Resolution 2 on payment of Directors’ fees of RM138,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 ; and
Resolution 3 on payment of Directors’ remuneration of RM15,600 (excluding Directors’ fees) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018.

The payment of the Directors’ fees of RM138,000 for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 to the NonExecutive Directors of the Company are as follows:
Name
Yap Kok Ching

Period
1 January 2018 – 26 November 2018

Amount Payable
(RM)
40,000

(Resigned wef. 26.11.2018)

Aun Ah Thim

1 January 2018 – 31 December 2018

40,000

Datuk Chan Chong Choon

1 January 2018 – 31 December 2018

40,000

Lai Hui Yeen

10 October 2018 – 31 December 2018

9,000

10 October 2018 – 31 December 2018

9,000

(Appointed wef. 18.10.2018)

Khor Joe Ann
(Appointed wef. 18.10.2018)

Total

138,000
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2.

Agenda No. 3 & 4 – Resolution 2 & 3 (cont’d)
The payment of the Directors’ remuneration of RM15,600 (excluding Directors’ fees) consist of payment of
meeting allowance payable to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company are as follows:
Name

Period
1 January 2018 – 26 November 2018

Amount Payable
(RM)
5,100

Aun Ah Thim

1 January 2018 – 31 December 2018

5100

Datuk Chan Chong Choon

1 January 2018 – 31 December 2018

4,200

Lai Hui Yeen

10 October 2018 – 31 December 2018

600

10 October 2018 – 31 December 2018

600

Yap Kok Ching
(Resigned wef. 26.11.2018)

(Appointed wef. 18.10.2018)

Khor Joe Ann
(Appointed wef. 18.10.2018)

Total

3.

15,600

Agenda No. 5 & 6 – Resolution 4 & 5
Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 2016 provides amongst others, that “the fees“ of the directors and “any
benefits” payable to the directors of a listed company and its subsidiaries shall be approved at a general
meeting. In this respect, the Board agreed that the shareholders’ approval shall be sought at the 15th AGM
on the Directors’ fees and Directors’ remuneration payable for the financial year ending
31 December 2019 and for the period from 1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM in two (2) separate resolutions
as below:



Resolution 4 on payment of Directors’ fees not exceeding RM160,000 for the financial year ending
31 December 2019 and RM80,000 for the period from 1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM; and
Resolution 5 on payment of Directors’ remuneration (excluding Directors’ fees) not exceeding RM20,000
for the financial year ending 31 December 2019 and RM10,000 for the period from 1 January 2020 until
the 16th AGM.

The payment of the Directors’ fees not exceeding RM160,000 for the financial year ending 31 December
2019 and RM80,000 for the period from 1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM will only be made if the proposed
Resolution 4 has been passed at the 15th AGM pursuant to Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 2016.
The estimated total amount of remuneration (excluding Directors’ fees) for the relevant periods of not
exceeding RM30,000 was determined based on the various factors including the number of scheduled
meetings for the Board and Board Committees as well as the extent of involvement of the respective
Directors and the possibility of an additional independent director(s) being appointed.
The details of the remuneration and benefits payable to the Non-Executive Directors are as follows:
Meeting Allowance (per meeting)
Board
- RM300
Board Committee
- RM300
Benefits in kind
Mobile phone allowance

- RM100 per month

Payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ending 31 December 2019 and for the period from
1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM and Directors’ Remuneration will be made by the Company on a quarterly
basis and/or as and when incurred if the proposed Resolution 4 and 5 have been passed at the 15th AGM.
The Board is of the view that it is just and equitable for the Directors to be paid the Directors’ Fees for the
financial year ending 31 December 2019 and for the period from 1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM and
Directors’ remuneration on a quarterly basis and/or as and when incurred, particularly after they have
discharged their responsibilities and rendered their services to the Company throughout the financial period
1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM.
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4.

Agenda No. 9 – Resolution 10
Authority to Allot and Issue Shares pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2016
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 10, if passed, will renew the authority given to the Directors of the
Company to issue and allot shares in the Company at any time, to such person or persons, upon such terms
and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit (“General
Mandate”), provided that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this General Mandate does not
exceed 10% of the total issued share capital of the Company at the time of issue. This renewed General
Mandate, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company.
As at the date of this Notice, no new shares were issued pursuant to the authority granted to the Directors at
the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting held on 25 May 2018 and the said authority will lapse at the
conclusion of the forthcoming Fifteenth Annual General Meeting.
The new General Mandate will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities,
including but not limited to further placing of shares, for purpose of funding future investment, working capital
and/or acquisitions. It would also expediate the process and eliminate the costs for convening a general
meeting to seek shareholders’ approval.

5.

Agenda No. 10 – Resolution 11
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 11, if approved, will empower the Company to purchase it own shares up
to ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares in the capital of the Company at any time
within the time period stipulated in the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. This authority unless revoked or
varied by the Company at a general meeting will expire at the next Annual General Meeting.
Further information on the Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to purchase up to 10% of its own
shares is set out in Part A of the Circular To Shareholders dated 23 April 2019, which is dispatched together
with this Annual Report.

6.

Agenda No. 11 – Resolution 12
Proposed Adoption of the New Constitution of the Company
The proposed Special Resolution 12, if approved, will bring the Company’s Constitution in line with the
enforcement of the Companies Act, 2016, the updated provisions of the ACE Market Listing Requirements of
Bursa Malaysia and enhance administrative efficiency. The Proposed New Constitution is set out in Part B of
the Circular To Shareholders dated 23 April 2019, which was dispatched together with this Annual Report.

Personal Data Privacy
By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and / or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the
Company’s Annual General Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company:(i)

consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its
agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and
th
representatives appointed for the 15 Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and
the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the
th
15 Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its
agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the
“Purposes”).

(ii)

warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or
representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of such
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of
the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes; and

(iii)

agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims,
demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.
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1.

DIRECTORS WHO ARE STANDING FOR RE-ELECTION
The Directors who are standing for re-election at the forthcoming Fifteenth Annual General Meeting are as
follows:
Yap Yoon Sing
Lai Hui Yeen
iii) Khor Joe Ann
i)

ii)

Further details of the above Directors are set out in the Profile of Directors on pages 12 and 14 of this
Annual Report.

2.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS
The details are set out in the Corporate Governance section on page 23 of this Annual Report.

3.

DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF THE MEETING
The Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Room Alhambra I & II, Level M1,
Hotel Melia Kuala Lumpur, 16 Jalan Imbi, 55100 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 24 May 2019 at 10.00 a.m.

Dividend Policy

Techfast Holdings Berhad (“Techfast”) had adopted a dividend policy of active capital management which
encompasses recommending dividends to allow shareholders to participate in the profits of Techfast, as well as
retain adequate reserves for future growth. In recommending dividends, it is the Board’s policy to provide stable
and sustainable dividends to shareholders while maintaining an efficient capital structure and ensuring sufficiency
of funding for future growth.
The declaration of interim dividends and the recommendation of final dividends are subject to the discretion of the
Board and any final dividend for the year is subject to shareholders’ approval. The dividend payment will depend
on a number of factors, including Techfast’s earnings, capital requirements, general financial condition and
working capital requirements, the Company’s distributable reserves, any contractual restrictions and other factors
considered relevant by the Board.
As part of this policy, barring any unforeseen circumstances, Techfast targets a payout ratio of at least
40% of its audited consolidated profit after taxation attributable to shareholders for each financial year, after
excluding any income that is capital in nature. This dividend policy had taken effect from the financial year ended
31 December 2017 and is subject to the confirmation of the Board and to any applicable law and contractual
obligation, and provided that such distribution would not be detrimental to its cash needs or to any plans approved
by its Board.
The dividend policy reflects the Board’s current views on the Group’s financial and cash flow position, and does
not constitute legally binding statements in respect of the Company’s future dividends which are subject to
modification (including reduction or non-declaration thereof) at the Board’s discretion.
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FORM OF PROXY
TECHFAST HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 647820-D)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

No. of shares held

I/We,

CDS Account No.

NRIC / Passport /Company No.
(Full Name in Block Letters)

of
(Full Address)

being a member/members of Techfast Holdings Berhad hereby appoint:
Full Name (In Block Letters)

NRIC /Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of
%
Shares:

NRIC /Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of
%
Shares:

Address
#

and / or (delete as appropriate)
Full Name (In Block Letters)

Address
or failing him, the CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as my/our proxy/proxies, to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the Fifteenth Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held Room Alhambra I & II, Level M1, Hotel Melia Kuala Lumpur, 16 Jalan Imbi, 55100 Kuala
Lumpur on Friday, 24 May 2019 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
No.
1.
2.
3.
4.

5.

6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
*

Resolutions

*FOR

*AGAINST

Ordinary Business
To approve the payment of final single tier dividend of 0.5 sen per ordinary share for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018
To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM138,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2018
To approve the payment of Directors’ remuneration of RM15,600 (excluding Directors’ fees) to NonExecutive Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2018
To approve the payment of Directors’ fees not exceeding RM160,000 for the financial year ending 31
December 2019 and RM80,000 for the period from 1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM to
Non-Executive Directors
To approve the payment of Directors’ remuneration (excluding Directors’ fees) not exceeding
RM20,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2019 and RM10,000 for the period from
1 January 2020 until the 16th AGM to Non-Executive Directors
To re-elect Yap Yoon Sing
To re-elect Lai Hui Yeen
To re-elect Khor Joe Ann
To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration
Special Business
Authority to allot and issue shares pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2016
Proposed renewal of share buy-back authority
Proposed adoption of new Constitution of the Company

Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided as to how you wish your votes to be cast. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her
discretion.

Dated this________day of _______________, 2019
Signature / Common Seal of Shareholder
NOTES:
1.
Only members registered in the Record of Depositors as at 15 May 2019 shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
2.
Where a member is an authorized nominee, as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint at least one (1) proxy but not more than two (2) proxies
3.

4.

5.
6.

in respect of each securities account it holds which is credited with ordinary shares of the Company. The appointment of two (2) proxies in respect of any particular securities account shall
be invalid unless the authorized nominee specifies the proportion of its shareholding to be represented by each proxy.
Where a member is an exempt authorized nominee (“EAN”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 which holds ordinary shares in the Company for
multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the EAN may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
The appointment of two (2) or more proxies in respect of any particular Omnibus Account shall be invalid unless the EAN specifies the proportion of its shareholding to be represented by
each proxy.
A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies. Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his
shareholding to be represented by each proxy, failing which the appointment shall be invalid. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. A proxy appointed to attend and
vote at a meeting of the Company shall have the same rights as the member to speak at the meeting. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company, an advocate, an approved
company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies.
The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office at Suites 7.21 & 7.22, 7 th Floor, Imbi Plaza, Jalan Imbi, 55100 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48
hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting, or any adjournment thereof.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under seal or
under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
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The Company Secretary

TECHFAST HOLDINGS BERHAD
Suites 7.21 & 7.22, 7th Floor
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